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Capital Preparatory Charter High School 
22 Grand Street, Trenton, NJ 08611 

February 4, 20 II 

Honorable President and Members ofthe Board of Trus!ees 
Capital Preparatory Chalter High School 
Trenton, New Jersey 08611 

Dear Board Members: 

Mr. David Bilenker 
Principal/Interim CSA 

The Comprehensive kmual Financial RepOlt of Capital Preparatory Charter High School for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2010, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the 
Capital PrepaTatory Charter High School Board of Trustees. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the 
data presented in this repOlt is accurate in all material respects and is repOlted in a manner designed to 
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of 
the Clunter School. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Chmter 
School's financial activities have been included. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, 
Statistical and Single Audit. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's 
Organizational Chart and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section includes the Basic Financial 
Statements and Schedules, as well as the Auditor's RepOlt thereon. The Statistical Section includes 
selected [mancial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is 
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 
1984, as mnended by the Single Audit Act of 1996, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-l33, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations", the state Treasury 
Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State 
Aid Payments" mld State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04. Information related to this single audit, 
including the auditor's repolt on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations mld findings and recommendation, are included in the single audit section of this repOlt. 

I. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Capital PreparatOlY Charter High School is an 
independent repOlting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) as established by GASB 23. All fimds and account groups of the Charter School are 
included in this report. 
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The mlSSlOn of Capital Preparatory Charter High School is to provide challenging and structured 
educational opportunities that maximize students' learning potential in accordance with individual needs, 
interests, and abilities. Capital Preparatory Charter High School provides a full range of educational 
services for its students and offers a comprehensive standards-based cun'iculum with a strong emphasis 
on college preparation. Educational services include regular education, special education and basic skills 
remediation. The chruter school is undoubtedly achieving its mission as is evident in the number of recent 
college acceptances and positive student outcomes on standardized state testing. 

FISCAL YEAR 

2008-2009 
2009-2010 

Average Daily Enrollment 

STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

178 
275 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: 

AVERAGE DAILY 
ENROLLMENT 

167 
264 

In August of2008, the school's charter was approved by the New Jersey Department of Education. Since 
this time, Capital Preparatory Charter High School has acquired a stable, dedicated staff that is committed 
to the success of its students. The charter school has also established a strong sense of community among 
its stakeholders. This can be seen in the number of lTaditions and ceremonies that are ritually celebrated 
by the staff, students, and families. As a result of these accomplishments, the local and greater community 
filmly believes in the school's mission and trust that the chruter school's staff is steadfast in prepru'ing our 
students to become productive citizens in the 21" century. 

As residents of the city of Trenton, Capital Preparatory Chalter High School's parents have the option to 
send their children to one of the various neighboring public schools/ private schools. Despite having this 
option, the majority of our students' parents/guardians have elected to have their child/children complete 
their secondary education with Capital Preparatory Charter High School. A significant number of the 
students in the chruier school's first graduating class commenced have remained with the chatter school 
since its inaugural year. This pattern is indicative of student and parental satisfaction with the school. 

According to recent parent surveys, 90% of Capital Preparatory Charter High School parents are pleased 
with their child's academic progress. They also stated that they would recommend the school to their 
friends. These same parents work collaboratively with the teaching staff and understand the importance in 
paltnering with the school to ensure the social, emotional, and academic success oftheil' children. 

It is our goal to continue to garner data and parental feedback to improve upon the instructional and non­
instructional programs offered at Capital Prepru'atory Chalter High School. The staff and administration 
whole-heatiedly believe in the notion that Capital Preparatory Chattel' High School is a work in progress. 
We will continue to strive toward providing students with a rigorous program of study that will prepare 
them for a four year college and or university and beyond. 

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The Capital Preparatory Chatter High School has developed a 
comprehensive strategic plan to suppmi its mission and vision. The plan consists of various objectives, 
such as pupil achievement measured by standardized test scores and teacher assessment instruments; the 
implementation of formal professional development workshops for celtified and nOll-certified staff; the 
employment of the Chatter School's technology plan. 

2 



4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Mal1agement of the Capital Preparatory Charter 
School is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that 
the assets of the charter school are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate 
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that: (1.) the cost of a control should not exceed the bencfits likely to be derived; and (2.) the 
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates arld judgments by management. 

As a recipient of Federal and'State awards, the charier school also is responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate internal control strncture is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
related to those prograrns. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the 
charter school management. 

As pari of the charter school's Single Audit described earlier, tests are made to dctermine the adequacy of 
the internal control structure, including that pOliion related to Federal and State awards, as well as to 
detennine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the charier school 
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetar'y controls is to ensure compliance with 
legal provisions embodied in the annnal appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. 
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund and the 
Debt Service Fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in 
the Capital Projects Fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the 
Financial Section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commilulents on a line item 
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund 
balance in the subsequent year'. Those amounts to be reappropriated are repmied as reservations of fund 
balance at June 30,2010. 

6. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the charter school is guided in lar'ge paJi by 
state statute as detailed in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statement" Note 3. The Chatier School had 
adopted a cash matlagement plan which requires it to deposit funds in public depositories protected from 
loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was 
enacted in 1970 to protect Government Units from loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking 
institntion in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public fimds only in public 
depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act. 

7. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board of Trnstees caJTies various forms of insurance, including but 
not limited to general liability, directors and officers insurance and worlanen's compensation. 

8. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by 
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting finn of 
Holman & Frenia, P.C. was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requiremeuts set forth in 
state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, as 
amended by the Single Audit Act of 1996, and the related OMB Circular A-I33 and State Treasury 
Circular Letter 04-04. The auditor's repmi on the basic financial statements and combining and individual 
fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's repOlis 
related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report. 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 





.c. 
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITTOR'S REPORT 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Trustees 

Capital Preparatory Charter High School 
County of Mercer 
Trenton, New Jersey 08618 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities each major fnnd and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of 
Trustees of the Capital Preparatory Charter High School, County of Mercer, State of New Jersey, as of 
and for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010, which collectively comprises the District's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Board's management. 

The Capital Preparatory Charter High School was unable to provide evidence of executed contracts 01' 

properly approved vouchers and invoices for payments made to vendors during and for the year ended 
June 30, 2010. Furthellllore, the Capital Preparatory Chmier High School's records do not permit the 
application of other auditing procedures to school expenditures. 

Because of the significance of the matter discussed in the preceding paragraph, the scope of our work 
was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial statements 
referred to in the first paragraph. 

Medford, New Jersey 
February 4, 2011 

MEDFORD OFFICE 
618 Stokes Road· Medford, NJ 08055 
Tel: 609.953.0612 • Fax: 609.953.8443 

holmanfrenia.com 

Respectfully submitted, 

HOLMAN&F 

!a 

Celiified Public Accountant 
Public School Accountant 
No. 1011 
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A. District-Wide Financial Statements 





EXHIBIT A-I 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

ASSETS 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Other CUlTent Assets 
Receivables, Net 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Other Payables 
Payable to Federal Government 
Payable to State Government 
Loan Payable 
Accounts Payable 
DefelTed Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Restricted for: 
General Fund 

Umestricted 

Total Net Assets 

JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE 

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 

$401,607 
55,374 
12,065 

469,046 

34,667 
306,013 
150,000 

104,868 

595,548 

(126,502) 

($126,502) 

2,723 

9,446 

12,169 

9,510 

9,510 

2,659 

2,659 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 

2010 2009 

404,330 
55,374 
21,511 

481,215 

9,510 
34,667 

306,013 
150,000 

104,868 

605,058 

(123,843) 

(123,843) 

736,031 

268,500 

1,004,531 

128,305 

136,271 

3,346 
110,953 

378,875 

42,948 
582,708 

625,656 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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-o 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 

Governmental Activities: 
Instruction 
Administration 
SUPPOlt Services 
Unallocated Benefits 
Capital Outlay 

EXPENSES 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

EXHIBIT A-2 

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PROGRAM REVENUES 

CHARGES OPERATING 
FOR GRANTS & 

SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS 
GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS­
TYPE 

ACTNITIES 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM OJ'..'LY) 
JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 

2010 2009 

$2,432,387 572,094 (1,860,293) (1,860,293) (1,116,479) 
(562,870) 
(972,543) 

1,474,169 (1,474,169) (1,474,169) 
1,696,006 268,248 (1,427,758) (1,427,758) 

150,065 (150,065) (150,065) 
442,214 9,730 (432,484) __ ~32,484) (26,7§21 

Total Governmeutal Activities 6,194,841 850,072 (5,344,769) (5,344,769) (2,678,641) 

Business-Type Activities: 
Proprietmy Funds 90,357 4,773 48,892 (36,692) (36,692) (19,832) 

Total Business-Type Activities 90,357 4,773 48,892 (36,692) (36,692) (19,832) 

Total Primmy Government $6285 198 4773 898964 (5,344,769) (36,692) (5,381,461) (2,698,473) 

General Revenues: 
General Purposes 
Federal & State Aid Not Restricted 
Miscellaneous Income 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues, Special Items, Extraordinmy Items & Transfers 

Change In Net Assets 
Net Assets - Beginning 

Net Assets - Ending 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

399,906 
4,024,281 

207,775 

399,906 
4,024,281 

207,775 

281,290 
2,964,701 

18,955 
59,183 

4,631,962 4,631,962 3,324,129 

(712,807) 
586,305 

(36,692) (749,499) 
39,351 625,656 

625,656 

($]26.502) 2_659 1l23,843) 625,656 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

EXHIBIT B-1 

TOTALS 

ASSETS & OTHER DEBITS 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Interfund Receivables 
Receivables from Other Govermnents 
Other Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Interfund Payables 
Payable to State Government 
Payable to Federal Government 
Loan Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Deferred Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Encumbrances 
General Fund 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 

Net assets of Governmental Activities 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$117,086 
157,051 

55,374 

$329,511 

$306,0l3 

150,000 

456,013 

(126,502) 

(126,502) 

$329,511 

SPECIAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
REVENUE JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 

FUND 2010 2009 

284,521 401,607 700,002 
157,051 134,953 

74,851 
55,374 55,374 

284,521 614,032 965,180 

144,986 144,986 128,305 
306,013 136,271 

34,667 34,667 
150,000 

3,346 
104,868 104,868 110,953 

284,521 740,534 378,875 

42,948 
(126,502) 543,357 

(126,502) 586,305 

284,521 

(126,502) 586,305 

The accompanying Notes to Pinancial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

EXHIBIT B-2 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

TOTALS 
SPECIAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

GENERAL REVENUE JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 
FUND FUND 2010 2009 

Revenues: 
Local Sources: 

Local Levy $399,906 399,906 281,290 
Miscellaneous 207,775 207,775 18,955 

Total Local Sources 607,681 607,681 300,245 

State Sources 4,024,281 4,024,281 2,725,637 
Federal Sources 850,072 850,072 239,064 

Total Revenues 4,631,962 850,072 5,482,034 3,264,946 

Expenditures: 
Instruction 1,860,293 572,094 2,432,387 943,610 
Administration 1,474,169 1,474,169 784,949 
Support Services 1,427,758 268,248 1,696,006 923,333 
Unallocated Benefits 150,065 150,065 
Capital Outlay 432,484 9,730 442,214 26,749 

Total Expenditures 5,344,769 850,072 6,194,841 2,678,641 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/ 
(Under) Expenditures (712,807) (712,807) 586,305 

Fund Balances July I 586,305 586,305 

Fund Balances June 30 ($126,502) (126,502) 586,305 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 
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EXHIBIT B-3 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (From B-2) 

Change in Net Assets of Goveromental Activities 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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($712,807) 

($712,807) 





Proprietary Funds 





CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30,2009) 

EXHIBITB-4 

TOTALS 

ASSETS 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable: 

Due from Other Funds 
Receivables from Other Govel11ments: 

State 
Federal 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to General Fund 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Unreserved Net Assets 

Total Net Assets 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

FOOD SERVICE 

$2,723 

360 
9,086 

12,169 

9,510 

9,510 

2,659 

$2,659 

(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 

2010 2009 

2,723 36,029 

1,267 

360 90 
9,086 1,965 

12,169 39,351 

9,510 

9,510 

2,659 39,351 

2,659 39,351 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

EXHIBIT B-5 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

FOOD SERVICE 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for Services: 

Daily Sales Nonreimbursable Programs 

Total Operating Revenue 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Sales 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income/(Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues: 
Board Contributions 
State Sources: 

State School Breakfast Program 
State School Lunch Program 

Federal Sources: 
National School Breakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 

Net Income/(Loss) 
Net Assets - July I 

Net Assets - June 30 

$4,773 

4,773 

90,357 

90,357 

(85,584) 

230 
1,625 

4,000 
43,037 

48,892 

(36,692) 
39,351 

$2,659 

JUNE 30, ruNE 30, 
2010 2009 

4,773 

4,773 

90,357 

90,357 

(85,584) 

230 
1,625 

4,000 
43,037 

48,892 

(36,692) 
39,351 

2,659 

282 

282 

59,183 

59,183 

(58,901) 

59,183 

413 
1,269 

5,783 
31,604 

98,252 

39,351 

39,351 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part afthis statement. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

EXHIBITB-6 

TOTALS 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from Customers 
Payments to Suppliers & Employees 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Nonc.pital Financing Activities: 
Cash Received From State & Federal Reimbursements 
Operating Transfers In 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapita! Financing Activities 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Balances - Beginning of Year 

Balances - Ending of Year 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

FOOD SERVICE 

($1,351) 
(80,847) 

(82,198) 

48,892 

48,892 

(33,306) 
36,029 

$2,723 

(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 

2010 2009 

(1,351) 282 
(80,847) (62,505) 

(82,198) (62,223) 

48,892 39,069 
59,183 

48,892 98,252 

(33,306) 36,029 
36,029 

2,723 36,029 

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income/(Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) 
to Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Change in Assets & Liabilities: 
Decrease/(Increase) Interfimd Accounts 

Receivable 
Increase/(Decre.se) Intergovemmental 

Accounts Receivable 
Increase/(Decre.se) Interfund Accounts 

Payable 

Total Adjustments 

Net Casb Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

($85,584) 

1,267 

(7,391) 

9,510 

3,386 

($82,198) 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral pmi oftrus statement. 
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(85,584) (58,901) 

1,267 (1,267) 

(7,391) (2,055) 

9,510 

3,386 (3,322) 

(82,198) (62,223) 





Fiduciary Fund 





CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

PRlV A TE PURPOSE 

EXHIBITB-7 

TOTALS 
AGENCY UNEMl'LOYMENT (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

PAYROLL STUDENT COMPENSATION JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 
ASSETS FUND ACTIVITY TRUST 2010 2009 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $43,998 2,177 5,862 52,037 37,875 
Interfund Receivables 1,604 

Total Assets 43,998 2,177 5,862 52,037 39,479 

LIABILITIES 

Interfund Payable 2,555 2,555 9,519 
Accounts Payable 2,177 2,177 1,641 
Payroll Deductions & Withholdings 41,443 41,443 28,319 

Total Liabilities 43,998 2,177 46,175 39,479 

NET ASSETS 

Reserved: 
Unemployment Claims 5,862 5,862 

Total Net Assets 5,862 5,862 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral pmt offhis statement. 
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ADDITIONS 

Contributions: 
Other 

Total Contributions 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

EXHIBITB-8 

PRIVATE PURPOSE 
UNEMPLOYMENT 
COMPENSATION 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 
TRUST 2010 2009 

$5,862 5,862 

5,862 5,862 

Net Assets - Beginning of the Year 

Net Assets - End of the Year $5,862 5,862 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies 

The financial statements of the Board of Trustees (Board) of the Capital Preparatory Charter High School 
(Chmter School) have been prepared in confol1nity with generally accepted acconnting principles as 
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accolmting and financial reporting principles. The 
more significant accounting policies of the Board's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity: 

The Charter School is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an 
education institution. The School is governed by an independent Board of Trustees, which consists of 
pm'ents, founders and other community representatives in accordance with its charter, which was 
appointed by the State Department of Education. An administrator is appointed by the Bom'd and is 
responsible for the administrative control of the Chmter School. 

The primary criterion for including activities within the Chmter School's reporting entity, as set forth in 
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards, is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the School. Oversight responsibility 
includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability 
to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. 

The combined financial statements include all funds and accOlmt groups for the Chmter School over 
which the Board of Trustees exercises operating contt·o!' 

B. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Acconnting 

The Chmter School's basic financial statements consist of Charter School-wide statements, including a 
statement of net assets and a statement of activities and fund financial statements which provide a more 
detailed level of finmlcial information. 

Charter School-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display 
information about the Charter School as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the 
overall Chmter School, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and 
business-type activity of the Charter School. Governmental activities generally are financed through 
taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange ttansactions. Business-type activities m'e 
financed in whole or in pmt by fees charged to external pmties. 

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type 
activities of the Chmter School at fiscal year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison 
between direct expenses and program revenues for the business-type activities of the Chatter School and 
for each function of the Chmter School's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued): 

specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular 
function. 

Program revenues include a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all 
taxes, are presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues 
identities the extent to which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws 
from the general revenues ofthe Chalier Schoo!' 

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the Chatier School segregates transactions related 
to cetiain Chalier School functions or activities in sepat'ate funds in order to aid financial management 
and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund financial statements provide information about the 
Charter School's funds in order to aid financial management atld to demonstrate legal compliance. The 
fund financial statements provide information about the Chatier School's funds, including its fiduciary 
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary and jiduciaTy - are 
presented. The New Jersey Depatiment of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey 
Chatier Schools to treat each govermnental fund as a major [,md in accordance with the option noted in 
GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is 
impOliant for public interest and to promote consistency atnong Chmiel' School fmancial reporting 
models. 

The Charter School reports the following governmental funds: 

Governmental Fnnds: 

General Fnnd - The general fund is the general operating fund of the Capital Preparatory 
Chmier High School and is used to account for all finatlcial resources except those required 
to be accounted for iil another fund. Included m'e certain expenditures for vehicles and 
movable instructional or non instructional equipment which are classified in the Capital 
Outlay sub-fund. 

As required by the New Jersey Depmiment of Education, the Chmiel' High School includes 
budgeted Capital Outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as 
they pertain to govennnental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to 
directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such 
cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital 
outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and 
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of or 
additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, constl'Uction 
of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. 
These resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by Board resolution. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Siguificant Acconnting Policies (continued): 

Special Revenne Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue from State and Federal Government, (other thml major capital projects or 
the Enterprise Flmds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expendihlres for 
specified purposes. 

Proprietary Fund: 

Enterprise (Food Service) Fnnd - The enterprise fund is used to accounts for all revenues 
and expenses pertaining to the cafeteria operations. The Food service fund is utilized to 
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similm· to private business 
enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation mld 
indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis m·e 
financed or recovered primarily tluongh user charges. 

Fiduciary Fund: 

Fiducim·y funds are used to account for assets held by the Charter School on the behalf of others 
mld include the Payroll Agency Fund, Net Payroll Account, Unemployment Trust mld Student 
Activities. 

Basis of Accounting: 

The accounting and financial repOliing treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus. All governmental funds and private purpose trust funds are accounted for using a current finmlcial 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only cunent assets and current liabilities 
generally are included on the balmlce sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., 
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures mld other financing uses) in net 
current assets. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included 
on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained 
earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and 
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of 
basis of accOlmting, revenues are recognized when iliey become both measurable and available. 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" mems collectible 
within ilie current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the CUlTent period. 
State equalization monies are recognized as revenue during the period in which they are appropriated. A 
one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued): 

Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fimd liability is inculTed, except for 
principal and interest on general long-term debt which are recorded when due. 

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Capital Preparatory Charter High School follows the 
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of 
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict witb or contradict GASB pronouncements. 

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of 
proprietm'y fund types and private purpose trust funds. Under this method, revenues are recognized in 
the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. 

C. BudgetslBudgetary Control: 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepm'ed in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue 
funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office and are voted upon at the annual school election 
on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. 

Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the 
minimum chait of accounts referenced in NJ.A.C.6:20-2A(m)1. All budget amendments must be 
approved by School Board resolution. 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device 
during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis 
of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated 
revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue 
fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of fonnal budgetary 
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary 
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grmlt accounting budgetary 
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the 
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records m'e maintained to allow for the presentation of 
GAAP basis financial reports. 

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-I, includes all amendments to the adopted budget, if any. 

The following presents a reconciliation of the special revenue fund revenues and expenditures from the 
budgetaIy basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General, and Special Revenues Funds to the GAAP 
basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types: 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued): 

C. BudgetslBudgetary Control (continued): 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and 
Expenditures. 

General Fund 

SourceslIuflows of Resources 
Actual amounts (budgetmy) "revenues" fi-om 

the budgetary comparison schedules $4,631,962 

Total revenue as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
govcrnmental funds $1,631 962 

Uses/Outflows of Resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" 

from the budgetaty compm'ison schedule $5,344,769 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and chmlges in fund balances -
governmental funds $5344.769 

D. Encumbrances: 

Special Revenue Fund 

$850,072 

$850072 

$850,072 

l85.fr 072 

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitu1ents for the expenditure of 
resources m'e recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in 
govemmental funds other than the special revenue fund are repotted as reservations of fund balmlces at 
fiscal year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to 
unperformed contracts for goods and services. 

Open encumbrances in thc special revenue fund for which the Chatter School has received advances are 
reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal yeat·-end. 

The encumbered appropriation authority catTies over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at 
the begilli1ing of the ncxt fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in thc cettified budget by the 
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year-end. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 
JUNE 30,2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued): 

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: 

Cash and Cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus 
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one 
year or less when purchased aTe stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. 

New Jersey Chmter Schools are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institntions 
they may invest in. N.J.S.IBA:20-37 provides a list ofpClmissible investments that may be purchased by 
New Jersey Chmter Schools. 

Additionally, the Bom'd has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in 
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection 
Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from loss of funds on 
deposit with a failed banking institution in New .Tersey. 

N.J.S.A.17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. 
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless 
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan 
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally 
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a mmket value at least equal to five 
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental 
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public 
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units. 

F. Inventories & Prepaid Expenses 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates mm·ket. The costs are determined on a first-in, first­
out method. 

The cost of inventories in governmental fund types is recorded as expenditures when purchased rather 
than when consumed. 

Prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the enterprise funds, are 
recorded as expenditure during the yem' of purchase. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent 
payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond .Tune 30, 20 I O. 

G. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/PayabJes 

Shalt-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods 
or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the Capital Preparatory Charter High School and that are 
due within one year. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued): 

H. Fixed Assets: 

General fixed assets acquired or constructed during the year are reported in the applicable governmental 
or business-type activities colunms in the Charter School-wide financial statements. Fixed assets are 
defined by the Charter School as assets, which have a cost in excess of $2,000 at the date of acquisition 
and a useful life of one year or more. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value 
on the date received. The general fixed assets acquired or constructed were valued by an independent 
appraisal company. General fixed assets, such as land and buildings, are valued at the historical cost 
basis and through estimated procedures performed by an independent appraisal company, respectively. 

General fixed assets are reflected as expenditures in the applicable governmental fhnds. Depreciation 
expense is recorded in the Charter School-wide financial statements as well as the proprietary fund. 
Capital assets are depreciated on the straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful life. There is 
no depreciation recorded for land and construction in progress. Generally estimated usefu I lives are as 
follows: 

Machinery and Equipment 
Building & Other Improvements 
Infrastructure 

I. Accrued Salaries aud Wages 

3 -20 Years 
7 - 60 Years 

30 Years 

Charter School employees, who provide services to the Charter School over the ten-month academic year 
and extended eleven-month calendar, do not have the option to have their salaries disbursed during the 
entire twelve-month year. Therefore, there is no accrual as of June 30, 2010 for such salaries. 

J. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave 
and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already 
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Ch31ter School 
and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences 
that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
Charter School and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or 
iu which such events take place. 

In the Chatter School-Wide financial statements, under governmental activities, compensated absences 
are reported as 311 expenditure and noncurrent liabilities. 

K. Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue in the general and special revenue funds represents cash, which has been received but 
not yet earned. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTERIDGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 1. Snmmary of Significant Acconnting Policies (continned): 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In Chmier School-wide financial statements, under governmental activities, long-term debt is recognized 
as a liability in the general fund as debt is incurred. 

M. Fund Equity 

The Chmter School reserves those pOliions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific 
use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are not available for 
appropriation of expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion which is available for 
appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has been established for encumbrances. 

Note 2. Cash and Cash Eqnivalents and Investments 

The Charter School is governed by the deposit and investment limitations of New Jersey state law. The 
Deposits and investments held at June 30, 2010, mld repOlied at fair value are as follows: 

Type 

Deposits: 
Demmld Deposits 

Total Deposits 

Reconciliation to Statements of Net Assets: 
Governmental Funds 
Business-Type Funds 
Fiduciary Funds 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Carrying 
Value 

$456,367 

$45.6.367 

$401,067 
2,723 

52.037 

$456367 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash, cash 
equivalents and investments had a bank balance of $639,979 at June 30, 2010. Of the bank balance 
$400,000 was fully insured by the FDIC (Federal Depository InsuraIlce Corporation) and $239,979 was 
secured by a collateral pool held by the bank, but not in the Chmier School's name, as required by New 
Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Governmental Unit Deposit 
Protection Act is more fully described in Note 3 of these financial statements. 

26 



CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30,2010 

Note 2. Cash and Cash Eqnivalents and Investments (continned): 

Investment Interest Rate Risk - The Charter School has no formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. Maturities of investment held at June 30, 2010, are provided in the above schedule. 

Investment Credit Risl, - The Charter School has no investment policy that limits its investment 
choices other than the limitation of state law as follows: 

• Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the 
United States of Ame!ica; 

• Government money market mutual funds; 

• Any obligation that a federal agency or federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with an 
act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of 
purchase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index 
or other external factor; 

• Bonds or other obligations of the Charter School or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or 
units within which the Charter School is located; 

• Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from the date of 
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of Treasury for investment 
by the Charter School; 

• Local Governments investment pools; 

• Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 
ofP.L. 1977, c.281; or 

• Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities with certain limitations. 

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - The Charter School places no limit on the amount it may 
invest in anyone issuer. 

Note 3. Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA) 

The Charter School has deposited cash in 2010 with an approved public fund depository qnalified under 
the provisions of the Government Unit Deposit Protection Act. In addition to savings and checking 
accounts the Charter School invests monies in certificates of deposits. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTERIDGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 3. Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA) (continued): 

The Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act P.L. 1970, Chapter 236, was passed to afford protection 
against bankruptcy or default by a depository. C.17:9-42 provides that no governmental unit shall 
deposit funds in a public depository unless such fhnds are secured in accordance with this act. C.17:9-42 
provides that every public depository having public funds on deposit shall, as security for such deposits, 
maintain eligihle collateral having a market value at least equal to either (1) 5% of the average daily 
halance of collected public funds on deposit during the 6 month period ending on the next preceding 
valuation date (June 30 or December 31) or (2) at the election of the depository, at least equal to 5% of 
the average balance of collected public funds on deposit on the first, eighth, fifteenth, and twenty-second 
days of each month in the 6 month period ending on the next preceding valuation date (June 30 or 
December 31). No public depository shall be required to maintain any eligible collateral pursuant to this 
act as security for any deposit or deposits of any governmental unit to the extent such deposits are 
insured by P.D.I.C. or any other U.S. agency which insures public depository funds. 

No public depository shall at any time receive and hold on deposit for any period in excess of 15 days 
public funds of a governmental unites) which, in the aggregate, exceed 75% of the capital funds of the 
depository, unless such depository shall, in addition to the security required to be maintained under the 
paragraph above, secure such excess by eligible collateral with a market value at least equal to 100% of 
such excess. 

In the event of a default, the Commissioner of Banking within 20 days after the default occurrence shall 
asceliain the amount of public funds on deposit in the defaulting depository and the amounts covered by 
federal deposit insurance and celiifY the amounts to each affected governmental unit. Within 10 days 
after receipt of this certification, each unit shall furnish to the Commissioner verified statements of its 
public deposits. The Commissioner shall asceliain the amount derived or to be derived from the 
liquidation of the collateral niaintained by the defaulting depository and shall distribute such proceeds 
pro rata among the governmental units to satisfY the net deposit liabilities to such units. 

If the proceeds of the sale of the collateral are insufficient to pay in full the liability to all affected 
governmental units, the Commissioner shall assess the deficiency against all other public depositories 
having public funds on deposit determined by a formula determined by law. All sums collected hy the 
Commissioner shall be paid to the governmental units having deposits in the defaulting depository in the 
proportion that the net deposit' liability to each such governmental unit bears to the aggregate of the net 
deposit liabilities to all such governmental units. 

All public depositories are required to furnish information and reports dealing with public funds on 
deposit every six months, Jnne 30th and December 31st, with the Commissioner of Banking. Any public 
depository which refuses or neglects to give any information so requested may be excluded by the 
Commissioner from the right to receive public funds for deposit until such time as the Commissioner 
shall acknowledge that such depository has furnished the information requested. 

Upon review and approval of the Certification Statement that the public depository complies with 
statutory requirements, the Commissioner issues forms approving the bank as a municipal depository. 
The Chalier School should rcquest copies of these approval forms semiannually to assure that all 
depositories are complying with requirements. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTERIDGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 4. Fixed Assets 

There was no record of fixed assets provided by the Capital Preparatory Charter High School. 

Note 5. Long-Term Debt 

Rental Lease: 

The School leased space at the premises located at 22 Grand Street and 719 Cass Street, Trenton, NJ 
under a lease agreement for four years commencing July 1, 2008 and ending June 30, 2012. The lease 
required annual rental payments of $414,500 for the first year and thereafter shall be adjusted by the 
increase as detailed in the lease agreement. The rental payments are as follows: 

Note 6. Pension Plans 

YEAR 
2011 
2012 

AMOUNT 
$414,500 
414,500 

Plan Descriptions - All required employees of the Chmier School are covered by either the Public 
Employees' Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established 
by state statute and m'e administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). 
According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both systems will be 
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information 
for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These 
reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, 
New Jersey, 08625. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was 
established in January 1955, Ul1der the provisions of N.J.S.A.18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, 
disability and medical benefits to celiain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 
is considered a cost-sharing mUltiple-employer plm1 with a special funding situation, as under current 
statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the Charter School 
and the system's other related noncontributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all 
teachers or members ofthe professional staff celiified by the State Board of Examiners and employees of 
the Depariment of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified. 

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) 
was established in January 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A.43: 15A to provide retirement, death, 
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 6. Pension Plans (coutinned): 

is a cost-sharing mnltiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time 
employees of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public agency, 
provided the employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or 
other state or local jurisdiction. 

Vesting and Benefit Provisions - The vesting and benefit provisions ofPERS are set by NJS.A.43:15A 
and 43.3B and NJS.A.18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for 
medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available 
at age 55 and are generally determined to be 1/55 of the final average salmy for each year of service 
credit, as defined. Final average salmy equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior 
to retirement (or highest three years' compensation if other than the final three years). Members may 
seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after 
achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after 
the member attains normal retirement age. The TP AF and PERS provides for specified medical benefits 
for members who retire after achieving 25 yem's of qualified service, as defined, or lU1der the disability 
provisious of the System. 

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit, 
become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before 
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts. 

Significant Legislation - During the yem' ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted (Chapter 114, 
P.L. 1997) authorizing the New Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue bonds, notes or other 
obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in pmi, the State of New Jersey's pOliion of the 
unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement systems. Additional legislation 
enacted during the year ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115, P.L. 1997) changed the asset valuation 
method from market related value to full-mm'ket value. This legislation also contained a provision to 
reduce the employee contribution rate by liz of 1% to 4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999, and to 
allow for a reduction in the employee's rate after calendar year 1999, providing excess valuation assets 
are available. The legislation also provided that the Charter School's normal contributions to the Fund 
may be reduced based on the revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds and the 
change in asset valuation method as a result of enactment of Chapters 114 and 115, all U11funded accrued 
liabilities were eliminated, except for the unfunded liability for local early retirement incentive benefits; 
accordingly, the pension costs for TP AF and PERS were reduced. 

New Legislation signed by the Acting Governor (Chapter 133, Public Laws 2001) chmlged the formula 
for calculating retirement benefits for all current and future non-veterml retirees from N/60 to N/55 (a 
9.09% increase). This legislation, signed June 29, 2001, provides that all members of the TPAF and the 
PERS will have their pensions calculated on the basis of years of credit divided by 55. It also provides 
that all current retirees will have their original pension recalculated under the N/55 formula. Stmting 
February 1,2002, pension cost of living adjustments will be based on the new original pension. 
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CAPITAL PREPAnATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30,2010 

Note 6. Pension Plans (continned): 

Contribntion Reqnirements - The contribution policy is set by NJSA.43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 
1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and NJSA.lS:66, and requires contributions by active members and 
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New 
Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 5.5% of employees' annual 
compensation, as defined. Employers aTe required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both 
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for both cost-of-living 
adjustments, noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current 
statute the Charter School is a noncontributing employer of the TP AF. 

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS 

Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pension ofAPC Pension 

Fnnding Cost (APC) Contribnted Obligation 

6/3011 0 NONE 100% NONE 
6/30/09 NONE 100% NONE 
6/30/08 NONE 100% NONE 

Three-Year Trend Information for TP AF (paid on behalf of the Charter School) 

Annual Percentage Net 
Year Pensiou ofAPC Pension 

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 

6/30110 NONE 100% NONE 
6/30/09 NONE 100% NONE 
6/30/08 NONE 100% NONE 

In accordance with NJSA.lSA:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Charter School $150,065 
for the year ended June 30, 2010 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF 
members as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in the basic financial 
statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as a 
revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 27. 

Note 7. Post-Retirement Benefits 

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required Teachers' Pensions and 
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 7. Post-Retirement Benefits (continned); 

retirement medical benefits for those State Employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited 
service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding ofpost­
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the 
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State 
employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2009, there were 84,590 retirees eligible 
for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the 
State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a 
prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c.126, which provides free health 
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education 
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $116.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits 
for 13,320 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2009. 

Note 8. Risk Management 

The Chmier School is exposed to various risks of loss related to tOlis; theft of, damage to and destruction 
of assets; errors mld omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

Property and Liability Insnrance - The Chatier School maintains commercial insurance coverage for 
propeliy, liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be 
found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Rcport. 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The Charter School has elected to fund their 
New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Contributory Method". Under this plml 
the Chmiel' School has a quarterly contribution due based on the amount of wages paid for the quatier 
and remits these funds with the employee withholdings to the State. 

Note 9. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2010: 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 9. Interfund Receivables and Payables (continued): 

Fund 

General Fund 
Special Revenue 
Proprietary Flmd 
Fiduciary FWlds 

Total 

Note 10. Fund Balance Appropriated 

Interfund 
Receivable 

$157,051 

$157,051 

Interfnnd 
Payable 

$144,986 
9,510 
2,555 

$127,\)51 

General Fund - Of the $(126,502) General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2010, $(126,502) is 
unreserved and undesignated, 

Note 11. Compensated Absences 

The Chmter School accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by 
Governmental Accounting Standm'ds Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated 
Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not 
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer mld employee is accrued as 
employees earn the rights to the benefits. 

Charter School employees are granted vacation and sick leave in vm'ying amounts under the Charter 
School's personnel policies. In the event of tennination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated 
vacation. Sick leave benefits provide for specified dollar amount per sick day accumulated and begin 
vesting with the employee after one year of service. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded in the 
statement of net assets lmder governmental activities. The current pOltion of the compensated absence 
balance is not considered material to the applicable funds total liabilities, and is therefore not shown 
separately fi-om the long-term liability balance of compensated absences. The mnoun( at Jnne 30, 2010 is 
unavailable. 

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those 
funds as the benefits accrne to employees. As of June 30, 2010 no liability existed for compensated 
absences in the proprietmy fund types. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued): 
JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 12. Note Payable 

On June 7tl
' of 20 10, the Charter High School opened a line of credit with TD Bank, N.A. for $300,000 to 

compensate for cash flow difficulties. As of June 30,2010, the Charter School had accessed $150,000 of 
the line of credit. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART II 





C. Budgetary Comparison Schedules 





EXHIBIT C-l 
(page 1 of3) 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009 

POSITIVE! POSITIVE! 
JUNE 30, 2010 (NEGATIVE) JUNE 30,2009 (NEGATIVE) 

ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO 
BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL 

Revenues: 
Local Sources: 

"Local Levy" - Local Share: 
Charter School Aid $360,061 360,061 399,906 39,845 281,290 281,290 281,290 

w 
V> 

Total Local Sources 360,061 360,061 399,906 39,845 281,290 281,290 281,290 

Categorical Aid: 
"Local Levy" - State Share: 

Charter School Aid 3,280,968 3,280,968 3,644,046 363,078 2,372,734 2,372,734 2,372,734 
Special Education 162,791 162,791 118,922 (43,869) 80,476 80,476 80,476 
Early Childhood Program Aid 108,961 108,961 108,961 
Security Aid 95,262 95,262 111,248 15,986 79,482 79,482 79,482 

Total Categorical Aid 3,539,021 3,539,021 3,874,216 335,195 2,641,653 2,641,653 2,641,653 

Revenues from Other Sources: 
Nonbudgeted: 

Reimbursed TP AF Social 
Security Contribution 150,065 150,065 83,984 83,984 

Contributions/Donations 14,732 14,732 17,955 17,955 
Miscellaneous Revenue 193,043 193,043 1,000 1,000 

Total Revenues from Other Sources 357,840 357,840 102,939 102,939 

Total Revenues 3,899,082 3,899,082 4,631,962 732,880 2,922,943 __ 2,922,943 3,025,882 102,939 



EXHIBIT C-1 
(Page 2 of3) 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009 

POSITIVE/ POSITIVE/ 
JUNE 30,2010 (NEGATIVE) JUNE 30, 2009 (NEGATIVE) 

ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO 
BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 1,300,750 1,300,750 1,295,207 5,543 800,000 800,000 737,627 62,373 
Other Salaries for Instruction 90,000 90,000 17,347 72,653 44,000 44,000 19,035 24,965 

w Purchased Professional - Technical 
0-

Services 71,600 71,600 93,485 (21,885) 63,500 63,500 60,224 3,276 
Other Purchased Services 35,000 35,000 32,756 2,244 504 504 340 164 
General Supplies 151,000 151,000 332,729 (181,729) 125,523 125,523 33,084 92,439 
Textbooks 133,242 133,242 63,839 69,403 67,000 67,000 11,378 55,622 
Miscellaneous 15,000 15,000 24,930 (9,930) 7,115 7,115 5,426 1,689 

Total Instruction 1,796,592 1,796,592 1,860,293 (63,701) 1,107,642 1,107,642 867,114 240,528 

Administration: 
Salaries - General Administration 328,000 328,000 417,003 (89,003) 221,420 221,420 214,541 6,879 
Salaries for Secretarial/Clerical 

Assistants 75,000 75,000 73,428 1,572 65,130 65,130 65,130 
Health Benefits Costs 430,000 430,000 521,498 (91,498) 303,189 303,189 262,434 40,755 
Purchased Professional - Technical 

Services 147,500 147,500 216,018 (68,518) 216,783 216,783 60,664 156,119 
Other Purchased Services 18,850 18,850 69,802 (50,952) 18,400 18,400 12,240 6,160 
Communications/Telephone 20,000 20,000 77,967 (57,967) 
General Supplies 12,500 12,500 79,027 (66,527) 19,800 19,800 17,537 2,263 
Textbooks 52,600 52,600 51,470 1,130 
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,500 .____.L.5OQ ___ 19,426 (17,926) 19,800 19,800 16,949 2,851 

Total Administration 1,033,350 1,033,350 1,474,169 (440,819) 917,122 ... ___ 917,122 700,965 216,157 



w 
-.,J 

Other Operation & Maintenance afPIant: 
Salaries 
Purchased Professional & Technical 

Services 
Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services 
Rental of Land & Building Other Than 

Lease Purchase Agreement 
Other Purchased Services 
TranSpOliation - Other Than TolFrom 

School 
Insurance for Property, Liability & Fidelity 
Supplies and Materials 
Energy (Heat & Electricity) 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

Total Other Operation & Maintenance afPIant 

Capital Outlay: 
Land Improvements 
Equipment: 

Non-Instructional Equipment 
Instructional Equipment 

Total Capital Outlay 

Nonbudgeted: 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GENERAL FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009 

EXHIBIT C-1 
(Page 3 of3) 

POSITIVE/ POSITIVE/ 
JUNE 30, 2010 (NEGATIVE) JUNE 30, 2009 (NEGATIVE) 

ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO 
BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL 

219,890 219,890 464,140 (244,250) 189,300 189,300 183,483 

145,000 145,000 158,759 (13,759) 69,000 69,000 5,240 
150,000 150,000 224,055 (74,055) 107,500 107,500 97,926 

300,000 300,000 300,000 332,800 332,800 214,500 
94,800 94,800 86,248 

1,000 1,000 14,584 (13,584) 3,000 3,000 2,000 
38,000 38,000 22,895 15,105 65,300 65,300 47,191 
35,000 35,000 148,410 (113,410) 32,800 32,800 24,926 
50,000 50,000 89,973 (39,973) 61,900 61,900 61,843 

5,250 5,250 4,942 308 65,050 65,050 59,358 

944,140 944,140 1,427,758 (483,618) 1,021,450 1,021,450 782,715 

125,000 125,000 329,009 (204,009) 

94,375 (94,375) 

5,817 

63,760 
9,574 

118,300 
8,552 

1,000 
18,109 
7,874 

57 
5,692 

238,735 

9,100 (9,100) 13,000 13,QOO 4,799_ 8,201 

125,000 125,()00 432,484 (307,484) 13,000 13,()00 4,799 8,201 

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution 150,065 (150,065) 83,984 (83,984) 

Total Expenditures 3,899,082 3,899,082 5,344,769 (1,445,687) 3,059,214 3,059,214 2,439,577 619,637 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures Before Other Financing Sources/rUses) (712,807) (712,807) (136,271) (136,271) 586,305 722,576 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) 
Expenditures After Other Financing Sources/rUses) (712,807) (712,807) (136,271) (136,271) 586,305 722,576 

Fund Balances, July 1 586,305 586,305 586,305 

Fund Balances, June 30 $586,305 586,305 C126,502) (712,807) !l36'z71l !l36,Z71l 586,305 722,576 



w 
00 

REVENUES 

Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Purchased Professional- Technical 

Services 
General Supplies 
Other Objects 

Total Instruction 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Supervisors of 

Instruction 
Personal Services - Emplovee Benefits 
Purchased Professional & Educational 

Services 
Other Purchased Professional Services 
Supplies and Materials 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 

Total Support Services 

Capital Outlay: 
Instructional Equipment 
N oninstructional Equipment 

Total Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Total Outflows 

Excessl(Deficiency) of Revenues Overl 
(Under) Expenditures & Other Financing 
Sourcesl(Uses) 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVEI 

JUNE 30, 2010 (NEGATIVE) JUNE 30, 2009 
ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL FINAL TO ORIGINAL BUDGET FINAL 
BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET TRANSFERS BUDGET 

EXHIBITC-2 

VARIANCE 
POSITIVEI 

(NEGATIVE) 
FINAL TO 

ACTUAL ACTUAL 

$1.001,270 1.001,270 850.072 1l5Ll98) 349,017 349.017 239,064 ()09.953) 

1,001,270 1,001,270 850,072 ()5Ll98) 349,017 349,017 239.064 ()09.953) 

. 293,125 293,125 284,125 9,000 

149,259 149,259 122,706 26,553 

25,000 

6,552 
91,196 

25,000 

6,552 
91,196 

25,000 

6,552 
44,975 193,422 193,422 114,526 78,896 46,221 

57,672 57,672 50,737 6,935 

693.478 

26,800 
53,461 

127,526 
37,004 
42,221 
----

287,012 

18,030 
2.750 

--------

693.478 572,094 121,384 122.748 122,748 76,527 46.221 

26,800 26,800 74,213 74,213 47,413 26,800 
53,461 52,084 1,377 12,735 12,735 12,735 

127,526 101,318 26,208 56,069 56,069 37,968 18, I 0 I 
37,004 26,825 10,179 15,377 15,377 15,377 
42,221 61,221 (19,000) 34,070 34,070 26,019 8,051 

--
1,075 1,075 1,075 

287,012 268,24,8 18,764 193.539 193,539 140,587 52.952 

18,030 8,030 10,000 29,980 29,980 21,950 8,030 
2,150 1,700 1,050 _ 2,750 2,750 2,750 

20,780 ___ 20,780 9,730 11,050 32.730 32,730 21,950 10,780 

1,001,270 1,001,270 850,072 151,198 349.017 349,017 239.064 109,953 

1,001,270 1.001,270 850,072 151,198 349,017 349,017 239,064 109.953 

$ -
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EXHIBITC-3 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

NOTE TO RSI 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and 
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures 

SourceslInflows of Resources: 
Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue!! 

From the Budgetary CompaTison Schedule (C-Series) 

Total Revenues as RepOlted on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental 
Funds. (B-2) 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule 

Total Expenditures as Reported on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (B-2) 

39 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$4,631,962 

$4,631,962 

$5,344,769 

$5,344,769 

SPECIAL 
REVENUE 

FUND 

850,072 

850,072 

850,072 

850,072 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 





D. School Based Budget Schedules 

Not Applicable 





E. Special Revenue Fund 



I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 



-I' 
o 

Revenues: 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of Teachers 
Purchased Professional 

Technical Services 
General Supplies 
Other Objects 

Total Instruction 

Support Services: 
Salaries of Supervisors 

of Instruction 
Personal Services/ 

Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional 

Educational Services 
Other Purchased Services 
Supplies & Materials 
Miscellaneous 

Total Support Services 

Capital Outlay: 

TITLE 
I 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGETARY BASIS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

TITLE TITLE 11 
I-ARRA PART A 

TITLE 
IV 

I.D.E.A 
PARTB 
BASIC 

ARRA 
I.D.E.A 
PARTB 
BASIC 

CADRE 
II 

CADRE 
III 2010 

EXHIBIT E-l 

2009 

$476,159 161,558 83 3,174 28,522 45,290 83,316 51,970 850,072 239,064 

$476.159 161,558 83 3.174 28522 45,290 83316 51.970 850072 239064 

$260,125 24,000 284,125 

38,259 38,953 204 45,290 122,706 
47,000 1,668 27,500 38,358 114,526 
32,150 18,587 50,737 

377,53L 83,208_ _ __ 27,704 ___ 45,290 38"358 572,094 

26,800 26,800 

51,625 459 52,084 

20,258 77,891 2,929 240 101,318 
26,742 83 26,825 

245 818 8,188 51,970 61,221 

25,000 

6,552 
44,975 

76,527 

47,413 

12,735 

37,968 
15,377 
26,019 

1,075 

98,625 78,350 83 3,174 818 35,228 51,970 268,248 14Q,587 

Instructional Equipment 8,030 8,030 21,950 
Non-Instructional Equipment 1,700 1,700 

Total Capital Outlay 9,730 9,730 21,950 

Total Expenditures $476.159 161.558 83 3,174 28,522 45,290 83,316 51.970 850.072 239,064 





F. Capital Projects Fund 

Not Applicable 





G. Proprietary Funds 
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Enterprise Funds 





CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

ASSETS FOOD SERVICE 2010 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $2,723 2,723 

Accounts Receivable: 
State 360 360 

Federal 9,086 9,086 
Due from General Fund 

Total Assets 12,169 12,169 

LIABILITIES 

Due to General Fund 9,510 9,510 

Total Liabilities 9,510 9,510 

NET ASSETS 

Unreserved Net Assets 2,659 2,659 

Total Net Assets $2,659 2,659 
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EXHIBIT G-I 

2009 

36,029 

90 
1,965 
1,267 

39,351 

39,351 

39,351 



CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2009) 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

FOOD SERVICE 2010 
Operating Revenues: 

Local Sources: 
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs: 

School Lunch Program $4,773 4,773 

Total Operating Revenue 4,773 4,773 

Operating Expenses: 
Cost of Sales 90,357 90,357 

Total Operating Expenses 90,357 90,357 

Operating Income/(Loss) (85,584) (85,584) 

Nonoperating Revenues: 
Board Contribution 
State Sources: 

State School Lunch Program 1,625 1,625 
State School Breakfast Program 230 230 

Federal Sources: 
National School Lunch Program 43,037 43,037 
National School Breakfast Program 4,000 4,000 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 48,892 48,892 

Net Income/(Loss) (36,692) (36,692) 
Net Assets - July 1 39,351 39,351 

Net Assets - June 30 $2,659 $2,659 
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EXHIBIT G-2 

2009 

282 

282 

59,183 

59,183 

(58,901) 

59,183 

1,269 
413 

31,604 
5,783 

98,252 

39,351 

$39,351 



CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
ENTERPRISE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for Ju"e 30, 2009) 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 
Receipts from Customers 
Payments to Suppliers & Employees 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Cash Received From State & Federal Reimbursements 
Operating Transfers In/(Out) 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Balances - Beginning of Year 

Balances - Ending of Year 

BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES -

FOOD SERVICE 

($1,351) 
(80,847) 

(82,198) 

48,892 

48,892 

(33,306) 
36,029 

$2,723 

2010 

(1,351) 
(80,847) 

(82,198) 

48,892 

48,892 

(33,306) 
36,029 

2,723 

EXHIBITG-3 

2009 

282 
(62,505) 

(62,223) 

39,069 
59,183 

98,252 

36,029 

36,029 

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash Proved/(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income/(Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) 
to Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities: 

Change in Assets & Liabilities: 
Decrease/(rncrease) Intcrfund Accounts 

Receivable 
Decrease/(I ncrease) Intergovernmental 

Accounts Receivable 
Increase/(Decrease) Interfund Accounts 

Payable 

Total Adj ustments 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 

($85,584) 

1,267 

(7,391) 

9,510 

3,386 

($82,198) 
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(85,584) (58,901) 

1,267 (1,267) 

(7,391) (2,055) 

9,510 

3,386 (3,322) 

(82,198) (62,223) 



I 

I 

I 

I 



Internal Service Fund 

Not Applicable 



1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 



H. Fiduciary Fund 





CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
TRUST AND AGENCY FUND 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2010 

(With Comparative Totals for ,T une 30, 2009) 

ASSETS 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 
Receivables: 

Interfund 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Interfund Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Payroll Deductions & 

Withholdings 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Held in Trust for Unemployment 
Claims & Other Purposes 

Total Net Assets 

PRIVATE PURPOSE 

~:-=~A;c:G=Ec:.:N",C~Y=""",,- UNEMPLOYMENT 
PAYROLL STUDENT COMPENSATION 

FUND ACTIVITY TRUST 

$43,998 2,177 5,862 

43,998 2,177 5,862 

2,555 
2,177 

41,443 

43,998 2,177 

5,862 

5,862 
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2010 

52,037 

52,037 

2,555 
2,177 

41,443 

46,175 

5,862 

5,862 

EXHIBIT H-l 

2009 

37,875 

1,604 

39,479 

9,519 
1,641 

28,319 

39,479 



ADDITIONS: 

EXHlBLTH-2 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2010 
(With Comparative Totals for June 30,2009) 

UNEMPLOYMENT 
COMPENSA nON 

TRUST 

TOTALS 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 
2010 2009 

Plan Member Contributions $5,862 5,862 

Total Contributions 

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 

Net Assets _ End 
of Year 
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5,862 5,862 

$5,862 5,862 



Student Groups 

Total 

ASSETS 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

BALANCE 
JULY 1, CASH CASH 

2009 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS 

$1,641 2,136 

$1,641 2,136 

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

BALANCE 
JULY 1, 

1,600 

1,600 

2009 ADDITIONS DELETIONS 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $36,234 2,698,495 2,690,731 
Interfund Accounts Receivable 

LIABILITIES 

Payroll Deductions & Withboldings 
Interfunds Payable 

Total Liabilities 

1,604 

$37,838 

$28,319 
9,519 

$37,838 
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2,698,495 

2,698,495 

2,698,495 

1,604 

2,692,335 

2,685,371 
6,964 

2,692,335 

EXHIBIT 1-1-3 

BALANCE 
JUNE 30, 

2010 

2,177 

2,177 

EXHIBITH-4 

BALANCE 
JUNE 30, 

2010 

43,998 

43,998 

41,443 
2,555 

43,998 





I. Long-Term Debt 

Not Applicable 





STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 





EXHIBIT J-I 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER IDGH SCHOOL 

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 

Governmental Activities: 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets 

Business-Type Activities: 
Unrestricted 

Total Business-Type Activities Net Assets 

District-Wide: 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total District Net Assets 
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FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2010 2009 

($126,502) 

($126,502) 

$2,659 

$2,659 

($123,843) 

($123,843) 

42,948 
543,357 

586,305 

39,351 

39,351 

42,948 
582,708 

625,656 



CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 

EXHIBIT J-2 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 

Expenses: 
Governmental Activities 

Instruction 
Administration 
Support Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service 

Total Business-Type Activities Expense 

Total Charter School Expenses 

Program Revenues: 
Govermnental Activities: 

Capital Grants & Contributions 

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues 

Business-Type Activities: 
Charges for Services: 

Food Service 
Capital Grants & Contributions 

Total Business Type Activities Program Revenues 

Total Charter School Program Revenues 

Netl(Expense)!Revenue: 
Govermnental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 

Total Charter School Net Expense 

Governmental Activities: 
General Purposes 
Federal & State Aid Not Restricted 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Transfers 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Charter School Wide 

Change in Net Assets: 
Governmental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 

Total Charter School 

Source: Charter School's Records 
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2010 2009 

$2,432,387 
1,474,169 
1,696,006 

442,214 

6,044,776 

90,357 

90,357 

$6135133 

850,072 

850,072 

4,773 
48,892 

53,665 

$903 737 

($5,194,704) 
(36,692) 

($5231 396) 

$399,906 
3,874,216 

207,775 

4,481,897 

$4481 897 

($712,807) 
(36,692) 

($749499) 

943,610 
784,949 
923,333 
26,749 

2,678,641 

59,183 

59,183 

2737824 

239,064 

239,064 

282 
39,069 

39,351 

278 415 

(2,439,577) 
09,832) 

(2459409) 

281,290 
2,725,637 

18,955 

3,025,882 

59,183 

59,183 

3085065 

586,305 
39,351 

625656 



CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
FUND BALANCES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

EXHIBIT J-3 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2010 2009 

General Flmd: 
Reserved 
Unreserved 

Total General Fund 

($126,502) 

($126,502) 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, 
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 

Revenues: 
Local Sources 
State Sources 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures: 
Instruction 
Administration 
Support Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Source: Chmier School records 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Note: Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay. 
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2010 

$607,681 
3,874,216 

850,072 

5,331,969 

2,432,387 
1,474,169 
1,696,006 

442,214 

6,044,776 

($712,807) 

42,948 
543,357 

586,305 

EXHIBIT J-4 

2009 

300,245 
2,725,637 

239,064 

3,264,946 

943,610 
784,949 
923,333 
26,749 

2,678,641 

586,305 



FISCAL 
YEAR 

ENDING 
JIINE 30, 

2010 
2009 

Total 

Source: District records 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accoul1ting) 

DONATIONS INTEREST MISCELLANEOUS 

$14,732 193,043 
18,955 

$14,732 211,998 

EXHIBITS J-6 THROUGH J-15 

NOT APPLICABLE 
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EXHIBIT J-5 

TOTAL 

207,775 
18,955 

226,730 



EXHIBIT J-16 
CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 

FunctioniProgram 

Instmction 
Administrative 
SUppOlt Services 

Total 

Source: Chatter School's Personnel Records 
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2010 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

2009 

17.00 
3.00 
2.00 

22.00 



V> 
N 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
OPERATING STATISTICS 

LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS 

AVERAGE 
DAILY 

AVERAGE 
DAILY 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

OPERATING 
EXPENDITURES COST PER PERCENTAGE TEACHING 

PUPILI 
TEACHER 

RATIO 
ENROLLMENT ATTENDANCE 

2010 
2009 

ENROLLMENT (a) 

N/A 
178 

$5,602,562 
2,434,778 

PUPIL CHANGE STAFF (b) 

N/A 
13,679 

N/A N/A 

Sources: District records 

Note: Enrollment based on annual October Charter School count. 

a Operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay. 
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certificated staff. 

(ADA) (c) 

N/A N/A 
167.0 

c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS). 

(ADA) (c) 

N/A 
151.34 

EXHIBIT 1-17 

% CHANGE IN 
AVERAGE STUDENT 

DAILY ATTENDANCE 
ENROLLMENT PERCENTAGE 

N/A N/A 
N/A 90.62% 



EXHIBIT J-18 AND J-19 
NOT APPLICABLE 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTERIDGH SCHOOL 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

JUNE 30, 2010 

Commercial General Liability - Great American: 
Each Occunence 
General Aggregate 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 
Personal & Advertising InjUly 
Damage to Premises Rented 
Premises Medical Payments 

Commercial Property - Great American 
Building (RC) 90% Coinsurance 
Business Personal Property 
Equipment Breakdown Linlit 

Business Automobile Coverage - Great American 
Nonowned & Hired Car Limit 

Umbrella Liability - Great American 
Limit of Liability Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate 
Products\Completed OPS Agg 
Self-Insured Retention 

Workman's Compensation - The Hartford 
Bodily Injury by Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease (Policy Limit) 
Bodily Injury by Disease (Each Employee) 

D&O Including Employment Related Practices & Educators 
Wrongful Acts - Great American 

D&O Linlit 
Employment Related Practices Linlit 
Retention Limit 

Student Accident Insurance - Bollinger 
Full Excess Coverage - Maximum Benefit 

Source: District records 
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COVERAGE 

1,000,000 
2,000,000 
2,000,000 
1,000,000 

100,000 
5,000 

3,000,000 
75,000 

3,075,000 

1,000,000 

4,000,000 
4,000,000 
4,000,000 

10,000 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

1,000,000 
1,000,000 

1,000,000 

EXHIBIT J-20 

DEDUCTIBLE 

1,000 
1,000 

2500 





SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 
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.c. 
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 

EXHIBITK-l 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board ofTmstccs 

Capital Preparatory Charter High School 
County of Mercer 
Trenton, New Jersey 08618 

We have audited the financial statemcnts of the Board of Tmstees of the Capital Preparatory Charter 
High School, County of Mercer, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, 
and have issued our repmi thereon dated February 4,2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Depatiment of 
Education, State of New Jersey. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Capital Preparatory Charter High School's 
internal control over financial repOliing as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial repmiing. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial repOliing was for the limited purpose described in thc 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficienCies in intemal control over financial 
repOliing that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weakncsses have been identified. 
However, as dcscribed in the accompanying Schedule ,"f Findings & Questioned Costs, we identified 
celiain deficiencies in intemal control over financial repOliing that we consider to be material 
wealG1esses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal conrse of performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timcly basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings & Questioned Costs as 
Findings No's: 2010-01 atld 2010-03 to be material weaknesses. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Capital Preparatory Charter High School's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opiuion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express snch an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed various instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standa;~ds and audit 
reqnirements as prescribed by the Division of Fillance, Depariment of Education, State of New Jersey as 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings & Questioned Costs. 

We noted celiain matters that we repmied to management in a separate Independent Auditor's 
Management Report on Administrative Findings - Financial Compliance and Performance dated 
February 4,2011. 

This repmi is intended solely for the information of the audit cOllUllittee, management, the Capital 
Preparatory Chmier High School, the New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-throngh entities and is not intended to be arld should not be used by 
anyone other thall these specified parties. 

Medford, New Jersey 
February 4,2011 

Respectfully submitted, 

HOLMAN & FRENlA, P. C. 

lia 
Certified Public Accountant 
Public School Accountant 
No. lOll 
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.c. 
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 

EXHIBITK-2 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE 

TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04 

Honorable President and Members 
ofthe Board of Trustees 

Capital Preparatory Chmier High School 
County of Mercer 
Trenton, New Jersey 08618 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Board of Trustees ofthe Capital Preparatory Chalier High School, in 
the County of Mercer, State of New Jersey, with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
US Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New 
Jersey Grants Compliance Supplement that m'e applicable to each of its major federal and state programs 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, The Capital Preparatory Chatier High School's major federal 
and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the 
Capital Preparatory Chmier High School's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Capital Prepat'atory Chatier High School's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed 
by the Division of Finance, Depaliment of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133 Audits 
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB's Circulat, 04-04, 
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards, OMB 
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04, requires that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Capital Preparatory Charter High 
School's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Our audit does not provide a: legal detennination on the Capital Preparatory Chat,ter High School's 
compliance with those requirements. 

As described in Finding No,: 2010-03 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings & Questioned Costs, 
the Capital Preparatory Chmiei' High School did not comply with requirements regarding accounting and 
repOliing that m'e applicable to its Title I and Title I - ARRA programs. Compliance with such 
requirements m'e necessary, in our opinion, for Capital Preparatory Chatier High School to comply with 
the requirements applicable to these programs. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Capital Preparatory Chmiel' High School is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants applicable to major federal and state programs, In planning and performing our audit, we 
considered Capital Preparatory Charter High School's internal control over compliance with 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal and state progrmTIS in order 
to determiue our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance, Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Capital Preparatory Charter High School's internal 
control over compliance, 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that .might be siguificmlt deficiencies 01' material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance 
that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, 01' material weaknesses have been identified. However, as 
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider 
to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design 01' operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal 01' state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over complimlce, such that there is 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or 
state progrmTI will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis, We consider the 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings & 
Questioned Costs as Findings No's: 2010-01 mld 2010-03 to be material weaknesses, 

Capital Prepm'atory Chmiel' High School's responses to the findings identified in our audit m'e described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Capital Prepm'atory 
Chmiel' High School's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses, 

This report is intended for the information of the management of the Board of Trustees of the Capital 
Preparatory Chmiel' High School, the New Jersey State Depmiment of Education, other state mld federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified pmiies, 

Medford, New Jersey 
February 4,2011 

Res ectfully submitted, 

Public School Accountant 
No. 1011 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER IDGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

BALANCE 
FEDERAL GRANTOR FEDERAL AT 

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR CFDA AWARD GRANT JUNE 30, CASH BUDGETARY 
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER AMOUNT PERIOD 2009 RECEIVED EXPENDITURES 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PASSED-
THROUGH STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION: 
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 $5,793 7/1/08-6/30/09 ($364) 364 
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 4,000 7/1/09-6/30/10 3,137 (4,000) 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 31,604 7/1/08-6/30/09 (1,601) 1,601 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 43,037 7/1/09-6/30/10 34,814 (43,037) 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture (1,965) 39,916 (47,037) 

THROUGH STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION: 
CADRE Grant N/A 60,000 7/1/09-6/30/10 60,000 (51,970) 
CADRE Grant N/A 160,000 7/1/08-6/30/09 101,852 (83,316) 
CADRE Grant N/A 134,250 7/1/07-6/30/08 8,101 
Title I 84.010 49,409 9/1/08-8/31/09 (49,409) 49,409 
Title I 84.010 476,159 9/1/09-8/31/10 476,159 (476,159) 
Title I - ARRA 84.389 213,096 9/1/09-8/31/11 213,096 (161,558) 
Title I1A 84.367 3,579 9/1/08-8/31/09 (3,579) 3,579 
Title I1A 84.367 11,867 9/1/09-8/31/10 11,867 (83) 
Title lID 84.218X 636 9/1/08-8/31/09 (636) 636 
Title lID 84.218X 4,401 9/1/09-8/31/10 4,401 
Title IV 84.186 1,143 9/1/08-8/31/09 (1,143) 1,143 
Title IV 84.186 5,929 9/1/09-8/31/10 5,929 (3,174) 
I.D.E.A. Part B, Basic - ARRA 84.392 60,440 9/1/09-8/31/11 60,440 (45,290) 
I.D.E.A. Part B, Basic 84.027 47,762 9/1/09-8/31/10 47,762 (28,522) 

(ACCOUNTS DEFERRED 

EXHIBIT K-3 
SCHEDULE A 

DUE TO 
RECEIVABLE) REVENUE GRANTORAT 

AT JUNE 30, AT JUNE 30, JUNE 30, 
2010 2010 2010 

(863) 

(8,223) 

(9,086) 

8,030 
18,536 
8,101 

51,538 

11,784 

4,401 

2,755 
15,150 
19,240 

Total U.S. Department of Education 55,18L 934,42L .. --.i850,0721_ ..l()4,868 34,667 

Total Federal Financial Assistance $53.221 974.337 (897.109) (9.086) 104.868 34.667 



GRANTOR 
STATE 

PROJECT 
STATE GRANTORIPROGRAM T NUMBER 

State Department of Education: 
General Fund: 

"Local Levy" State Share Charter 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 

BALANCE 
AT 

AWARD GRANT JUNE 30, CASH BUDGETARY 
AMOUNT PERIOD 2009 RECEIVED EXPENDITURES 

(ACCOUNTS 

EXHIBITK-4 
SCHEDULEB 

MEMO 
CUMULATIVE 

RECEIVABLE) BUDGETARY TOTAL 
2010 RECEIVABLE EXPENDITURES 

School Aid 10-495-034-5120-071 $3,644,046 7/1/09-6/30/10 3,644,046 (3,644,046) 3,644,046 
::i:: Special Education Categorical Aid 10-495-034-5120-089 

Security Aid 10-495-034-5120-084 
On-BehalfTPAF Social Security 

Reimbursement 10-495-034-5095-002 
On-BehalfTP AF Social Security 

Reimbursement 09-495-034-5095-002 

Total General Fnnd 

State Department of Agriculture: 
National School Breakfast Program 09-100-10-3360-096 
National School Breakfast Program 10-100-10-3360-096 
National School Lnnch Program 10-100-10-3360-067 
National School Lnnch Program 09-100-10-3360-067 

Total Enterprise Fund 

Total State Financial Assistance 

118,922 7/1109-6/30/10 118,922 (118,922) 
111,248 7/1109-6/30/10 111,248 (111,248) 

150,065 7/1109-6/30/10 150,065 (150,065) 

83,984 7/1/08-6/30109 ($4,133) 4,133 

(4,)33) 4,028,414 (4,024,281) 

413 7/1108-6/30109 (26) 26 
230 7/1109-6/30/10 180 

1,625 7/1109-6/30/10 1,315 
1,269 7/1108-6/30109 (64) 64 

(230) 
(1,625) 

(50) 
(310) 

(90) 1,585 (1,855) (360) 

118,922 
111,248 

150,065 

4,024,281 

230 
1,625 

1,855 

($4,223) 4,029,999 (4,026,136) (360) 4,026,136 



Note 1. General 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER IDGH SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

JUNE 30, 2010 

EXHIBITK-5 
(page I of2) 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance inclnde 
federal and state award activity of the Board of Trustees, Capital Preparatory Charter High School. The 
Board of Trustees is defined in Note I to the Board's basic fmancial statements. All federal and state 
awaTds received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial 
assistarlce passed tlu'ough other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and state fmancial assistance. 

Note 2. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and fmancial assistance are presented on the 
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of prograrns recorded in the food service fund, which 
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These basis of accounting are described in Note I to 
the Board's basic finarlcial statements. 

Note 3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. 
Budgetary comparison statements or schednles (RSI) are presented for the general fund arld special 
revenue fund to demonstrate finance related legal compliance in which celtain revenue is permitted by 
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP repOlting, revenue is not 
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. 

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schednles on the modified accrual basis with the 
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year', which is 
mmdated pursnarlt to N.J.SA.18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the 
subsequent budget year due to the state defen-al and recording of the last state aid payment in the 
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant 
accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the 
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last 
state aid payment in the cun-ent budget year', consistent with N.J.S.A.18A:22-4.2. 

The net adjustment to reconcile £i'om the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $-0- for the general fund 
arld $-0- for the special revenue fund. See Note I for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the 
modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards md finarlCial 
assistance revenues are repOlted in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as presented 
as follows: 
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CAPITALPREPARATORYCHARTERIDGHSCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

JUNE 30, 2010 

Note 3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued): 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $3,874,216 $3,874,216 
Special Revenue Fuud $850,072 850,072 
Food Service Fund 47.037 1,855 48,892 

Total Financial Assistance $8.21,109 $3 876,071 $4 77~180 

Note 4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports 

EXHIBITK-5 
(Page 20f2) 

Amounts repOlied in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal 
and state financial repOlis. 

Note 5. Other 

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represents current year value 
received and current year distributions respectively. TP AF social security contributions represent the 
amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social secmity contributions for TP AF 
members for the year ended June 30,2010. 

Note 6. Federal and State Loans Ontstanding 

The Capital Preparatory Chmiel' High School had no loan balances outstanding at June 30, 2010. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's repmi issued: 

hlternal control over financial repoliing: 

1) Material weakness( es) identified? 

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to basic financial 
Statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

mternal Control over major programs: 

1) Material weakness(es) identified? 

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
With Section .51 O(a) of Circulal" A-133 

Identification of major programs: 

EXHIBITK-6 
(Page 1 of 4) 

Disclaimer 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Qualified 

Yes 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.010 
84.389 

Title I 
ARRA - Title I 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between lype A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 
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$300,000 

No 



State Awards 

CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued): 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs 

Internal Control over major programs: 

I) Material weakness( es) identified? 

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered 
To be material weaknesses? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be repOlied in accordance 
With New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 

Identification of major programs: 

GNUS Number(s) Name of State Program 

10-495-034-5120-071 Charter School Aid 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

EXHIBITK-6 
(Page 2 of4) 

$300,000 

No 

Qualified 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of noncompliance 
related to the financial statements that are required to be repOlied in accordance with paragraphs 5.18 
through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards. 

Finding 2010-01: 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: 

In order for the Chmier School to ensure reliable financial reporting, effective and efficient operations, 
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, there should be proper internal controls in place. 

Condition: 

Internal controls of the Charter School were found to be insufficient and ineffective. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings (continned): 

Finding 2010-01 (continued): 

Context: 

EXHIBITK-6 
(Page 3 of4) 

Internal controls are vital to all organizations in order to ensure that there is reliable financial reporting, 
effective and efficient operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Effect: 

The Charter School risks materially misstating their financial statements, as well not effectively 
preventing and! or detecting fraud within the school. 

Cause: 

Lack of understanding by Chmier School employees as to the importance of proper internal controls. 

Recommendation: 

That the chmier school improve, document and follow their internal control processes in order to ensure 
reliable financial repOliing, effective mld efficient operations, compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations and help prevent fraud from occurring within the Chmier School. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: 

The Charter School agrees with this finding and will take the appropriate steps to correct this moving 
forward. 

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Finding & Questioned Costs 

This section identifies audit findings required to be reported by section .510(a) of Circular A-133 and 
New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04. 

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Information of Federal Programs: CFDA#'s 84.010, 84.389 

Information on the State Programs: NJCFS#'s 10-495-034-5120-071 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER mGH SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30, 2010 

EXHIBITK-6 
(Page 4 of 4) 

Section III - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Finding & Qnestioned Costs 
(continued): 

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (continued): 

Finding 2010-03 (continued): 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: 

In order for the Charter School to be able to evidence proper use offederal and state funds there should 
be appropriate supporting documentation for all expenditures charged against federal and state funds. 

Condition: 

There was a lack of accounting, and suppOliing documentation for expenditures in which federal and 
state financial awards were used. 

Qnestioned Costs: 

$637,717 

Context: 

Proper record keeping and suppOliing documentation for all federal and state expenditures is essential in 
ensuring that funds were only used for allowable items within the proper period and in agreement with 
approved budgets. 

Effect: 

The Charter School risks not following federal and state compliance l"equirements. 

Canse: 

Lack of understanding by Charter School employees as to the importance of maintaining proper 
suppOliing documentation and audit trails for federal and state assistance expenditures. 

Recommendation: 

That the charter school improve, document and follow their internal control processes related to federal 
and state funds in order to ensure proper record keeping and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: 

The Chmier School agrees with this finding and will take the appropriate steps to correct this moving 
forward. 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT 
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30, 2010 

EXHIBITK-7 

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and 
federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government 
Auditing Standards, USOMB Circular A-133 (section .315 (a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-
04. 

No Prior Year Findings 
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CAPITAL PREPARATORY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Trenton, New Jersey 
County of Mercer 

Auditor's Managemeut Report on Administrative Findings -
Financial, Compliance and Performance 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS 
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.c. 
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Honorable President and Members 
ofthe Board of Edncation 

Capital Preparatory Charter High School 
ComIty of Mercer 
Trenton, New Jersey 08618 

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted audit standards and Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the 
Board of Trustees of the Capital Preparatory Charter High School in the County of Mercer for the year 
ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated February 4,2011. 

As part of our audit, we performed procedures required by the New Jersey Department of Education, and 
the findings and results thereof are disclosed on the following pages, as listed in the accompanying table 
of contents. 

This repOli is intended for the information of the Capital Preparatory Chalier High School's management 
and the New Jersey Department of Edncation. However, this repmi is a matter of pnblic record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Medford, New Jersey 
February 4, 2011 

MEDFORD OFFICE 
618 Stokes Road. Medford, NJ 08055 
Tel: 609.953.0612 • Fax: 609.953.8443 

holmanfrenia.com 

Respectfully submitted, 

HO MAN & FRENIA, P. C. 

Public School Accountant 
No. 1011 

TOMS RIVER OFFICE 
10 Allen St., Suite 2B • Toms River, NJ 08753 

Tel: 732.797.1333 • Fax: 732.797.1022 
holmanfrenia.com 





.c. 
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants 

Honorable President and Members ofthe 
Board of Trustees Capital PreparatOlY Chatier High School 
County of Mercer 
Trenton, New Jersey 

ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS 
FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE 

Scope of Audit 

The audit covered the financial transactions of the Board Secretary/School Business Administrator and 
Treasurer of School Moneys, the activities of the Board of Trustees and the records of vat·ious funds 
under the auspices of the Board of Trustees. 

Administrative Practices and Procednres 

Insurauce 

Fire insurance coverage was carried in the amounts as detailed on Exhibit J-20, Insurance Schedule 
contained in the Chatier School's CAFR. 

Official Bonds 

Name Position Amount 

Thomas Gant Business Administrator/Board Secretary $160,000 

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting 

Internal Controls 

Finding 2010-01: 

It was noted during our audit that the intemal controls of the Capital Preparatory Chatier School are not 
operating effectively. The following were noted: 

a. Grant charges were expended through the general fund budget and subsequently charged to 
grants by journal entry, leaving no audit trail to ensure that charges to grants were for allowable 
items. 

MEDFORD OFFICE 
618 Stokes Road. Medford, NJ 08055 
Tel: 609.953.0612 • Fax: 609.953.8443 

holmanfrenia.com 2 

TOMS RIVER OFFICE 
10 Allen St., Suite 2B • Toms River, NJ 08753 

Tel: 732.797.1333· Fax: 732.797.1022 
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Internal Controls (continned): 

b. No treasurer's repOli was completed or provided for inspection, for the year ended June 30, 
2010. 

c. The majority of expenditures selected for examination did not contain the proper suppOliing 
documentation and/or approvals. 

d. Various trips taken by school officials and employees did not contain proper supporting 
documentation or approvals from the county superintendent. 

e. It was discovered that sepamte bills lists were being prepared outside of the accounting system 
for presentation and board approval. These biII lists did not contain all items actually paid by the 
chmier school. 

f. It was noted that the former business administrator purchased I-Pads for school employees 
through the operating budget. Additionally, it was determined that employees were misled into 
believing the I-Pads were $400, while they were actually $700. It appears that the difference in 
price was going to be absorbed by the school's general fund. Reimbursements by employees that 
paid in cash are not traceable to the school's bank account. 

g. Various employees were paid and/or reimbursed for services or items outside of payroll. 
These payments are not properly suppOlied by approved contracts or suppOlting documentation. 

h. Fixed assets were not tracked by the Chmier School. 

i. Encumbrmlces and accounts payable were not properly recorded by the Charter School. 

j. The Chmier School's budget was overspent by 1.1 million dollm·s. 

Ie. It was noted during our testing that various former employees were still on the school's health 
benefits bill. 

I. It was noted that the former business administrator received a $10,000 stipend for his transition 
from his former position into the business administrator role. However, he also received a 
$10,000 increase through the payroll which was not approved. 

m. During our testing of payroll it was noted that a former 12 month employee with an approved 
salary of $45,000 was being paid as if he was a 10 month employee, thus, his projected pay was 
actually $54,000. 

n. It was noted that hires, terminations, resignations, etc. were not tracked by the school. 

o. All activity related to the School's food service was run through the general fund bank account 
and never recorded in the food service general ledger. 

Recommendation: 

That the charter school improve, document and follow their internal control processes in order to ensure 
reliable financial repOliing, effective and efficient operations, compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations and help prevent fraud from occurring within the Chm·ter School. 
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Compliance 

Finding 2010-02: 

Dw-ing our audit the following compliance issues were noted. 

a. It was noted that payroll registers were not properly certified by the appropriated School 
Officials 
b. The ethics disclosure forms were not provided for inspection. 
c. The School's pension reports were not filed in a timely manner. 

Recommendation: 

That the Charter School addresses and corrects the above compliance issues. 

Examination of Claims 

An examination of claims paid dw-ing the period under review indicated that the vouchers were not in 
satisfactory condition. See h1ternal Control's section for detail. 

Payroll Account 

The net salaries of all employees of the Board were deposited in the Payroll Account. Employees' 
payroll deductions and employer's share of fringe benefits were deposited iu the Payroll agency account. 

Salary withholdings were promptly remitted to the proper agencies. 

See the Internal Control's and Compliance section above for detail of findings related to the Chmier 
School's payroll. 

Reserve for Encnmbrances and Acconnts Payable 

A review of outstanding issued purchase orders was made as of June 30, 2010 for proper classification of 
orders as reserve for encumbrances and accounts payable. 

See the Internal Control's section above for detail of findings related Encumbrances at1d Accounts 
Payable. 

Classification of Expenditures 

The coding of expenditures was tested for proper classification in accordance with NJA. C. 6:20-2(M) as 
part of ow- test of transactions of randomly selected expenditw-e items. We also reviewed the coding of 
all expenditures included in ow- compliance and single audit testing procedures. See h1ternal Controls 
section for finding related to classification of expenditures. 
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Board Secretary's Records 

Our review of the financial and accounting records maintained by the Board Secretary disclosed various 
findings. See Internal Controls section for detail. 

Treasnrer's Records 

The Treasurer's records were reviewed and found to not be in satisfactory condition. See Internal 
Controls section for finding related to Treasurer's Records. 

Elementary and Secondary Education Act (E.S.E.A.)/Improving America's Schools Act (I.A.s.A.) 
as Reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001. 

The E.S.E.A.IN.C.L.B. financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section ofthe CAFR. 
This section of the CAFR documents the financial position pertaining to the projects under Titles I, II, IV 
and Title VI ofthe Elementary and SecondalY Edncation Act as amended mld reauthorized. 

Other Special Federal andlor State Projects 

The ChaIter School's Special Projects were approved as listed on Schedule A and Schedule B located in 
theCAFR. 

Our audit of the Federal and State funds on a test basis, indicated that obligations and expenditures were 
incuned during the fiscal year or project period for which the project was approved. The tests of 
compliance for the major state programs selected indicated areas of noncomplimlce. See Internal 
Controls section for findings. 

The financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the CAFR. This section of 
the CAFR documents the financial position peltaining to the aforementioned special projects. 

Finding 2010-03: 

There was a lack of accounting, and suppOlting documentation for expenditures in which federal and 
state financial awards were nsed. 

Recommendation: 

That the chmter school improve, document and follow their internal control processes related to federal 
and state funds in order to ensure proper record keeping and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

T.P.A.F. Reimbursement 

Our audit procedures included a test of the biweekly reimbursements (electronic, but Charter Schools can 
print out the DOENET for an auditor) forms filed with the Department of Education for Charter School 
employees who are members of the Teachers Pension mld Annuity Fund. No exceptions were noted. 
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School Purchasiug Programs 

Coutracts aud Agreemeuts Requiring Advertisement for Bids 

N.J.S.A.IBA:IBA-3 states: 

a) "When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in the aggregate, 
does not exceed in a contract year the total sum of $21,000, the contract may be awarded by 
a purchasing agent when so authorized by resolution ofthe board of education without public 
advertisiug for bids and bidding therefore, except that the board of education may adopt a 
resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipts of public bids or the solicitation of 
competitive quotations. If the purchasing agent is qualified pursuant to subsection b. 
(pending before the Legislature as section 15 of this bill) of Section 9 ofP.L. 1071, c.198 
(C.40A: 119) the board of education may establish that the bid threshold may be up to 
$29,000. Such authorization may be granted for each contract or by a general delegation of 
the power to negotiate and awm'd such contracts pursuant to this section. 

b) Commencing in the fifth year after the year in which P.L. 1999, c.440 takes effect, mld every 
five years thereafter, the Governor, in consultation with the Department of Treasury, shall 
adjust the threshold amount and the higher threshold amount which the board of education is 
permitted to establish as set forth in subsection a. of this section or the threshold amount 
resulting from any adjustment under this subsection, in direct propOliion to the rise or fall of 
the index rate as that teJm is defined in NJ.SlSA:lSA-2 (pending before the Legislature as 
section 50 of this bill), and shall round the adjustment to the nearest $1,000. The Governor 
shall notifY all local school districts of the adjustment no later than June 1 of every fifth year. 
The adjustment shall become effective on July 1 ofthe year in which it is made. 

NJ.S.A.lSA: lSA -4 - Every contmct for the performance of any goods or services, the cost of which in the 
aggregate exceeds the bid threshold, shall be awarded only by resolution of the board of education to the 
lowest responsible bidder after public advertising for bids and bidding therefore, except as is provided 
otherwise in this chapter or specifically by any other law. No work, materials or supplies shall be 
undertaken, acquired or furnished for a sum exceeding in the aggregate the muount set fmih m, or 
calculated by the Governor pursumlt to NJ.S.A.lSA: lSA-3 except by contract or agreement. 

Etfective July 1, 2005 and thereafter the bid thresholds in accordance with NJ.SA.lSA:lSA-3 (as 
amended) mld lSA:39-3 are $21,000.00 and $17,200.00 respectively. 

The Board of Education has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditmes in any categmy 
will exceed the statutory thresholds within the fiscal year (contract year for July 1,2005 and thereafter). 
Where question arises as to whether any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the 
Solicitor's opinion should be sought before a commitu1ent is made. 

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the 
perfmmance of mw work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the results of such an 
accumulation could not reasonably be asceJiained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine 
whether any clear-cut violations existed. 

The results of our examination indicated that individual payments, contracts or agreements were made 
"for the perfmmance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies", in excess of 
the statutory thresholds where there had been no advetiising for bids in accordance with the provision of 
NJ.SA.lSA:lSA-4. 
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The following was noted: 

Finding 2010-04: 

It was noted that payments to vendors for services, equipment and materials, which were in excess of the 
bid threshold, were not properly adveltised in accordance with provision NJ.S.A.IBA:IBA-4. 

Recommendation: 

That payments, contracts, or agreements for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of 
any materials or supplies in excess of statutory thresholds be properly advertised in accordance with 
provision NJ.S.A.IBA: IBA -4. 

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for "Professional 
Services" per NJ.S.A. IBA:IBA-5. 

The system of records did not provide for an accumulation of purchases for which the School Board used 
contracts entered into by the State Department of Purchase and Property pursuant to Ch. 114, P.L. 1977, 
therefore, the extent of such purchases "ould not reasonably be ascertained. 

School Food Service 

The financial transactions and statistical records of the School Food Services were 
not maintained in satisfactory condition. 

Exhibits reflecting Child Nutrition Prograrn operations are included in the section entitled Enterprise 
Funds, Section G. 

See hlternal Controls section for findings related to School Food Service. 

Enrollment Couuts and Submissions to the Department 

Our audit procedures iucluded a test of enrollment information reported on October 15,2009 and the last 
day of school for on-roll, special education, bilingual and low-income. 

Finding 2010-05: 

The proper supporting documentation for the Charter School Register was not provided. 

Recommendation: 

That the Charter School provides their completed School Register and proper suppOlting documentation 
for inspection. 

Follow-up ou Prior Years' Findings 

In accordance with government auditing standards, our procedures included a review of all prior year' 
findings. Corrective action was taken on the prior year findings. 
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We received the complete cooperation of all the officials of the Chmier School and we greatly appreciate 
the courtesies extended to the members of the audit team. 

Should you have any questions concerning our comments or should you desire any assistmlce, please call 
me. 

Medford, New Jersey 
February 4, 2011 

Respectfully submitted, 

HOLMAN & FRENIA, P. C. 

/ 

evin P. Frenia 
Certified Public Accountant 
Public School Accountallt 
No. 1011 
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